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UNITED STATES OF AMERICA JOFFICE OF THE SECRETARY
Before the

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

ADMINISTRATIVE PROCEEDING
File No. 3-19024

In the Matter of

ASCENSION ASSET
MANAGEMENT, LLC

and
GRENVILLE M. GOODER, JR.,

Respondents.

SUPPLEMENTAL DECLARATION OF NICHOLAS A. PILGRIM IN SUPPORT OF THE
DIVISION OF ENFORCEMENT’S MOTION FOR SUMMARY DISPOSITION
AGAINST RESPONDENTS ASCENSION ASSET MANAGEMENT, LLC
AND GRENVILLE M. GOODER, JR.

NICHOLAS A. PILGRIM, pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1746, declares:

1. I am a member in good standing of the bar of the state of New York. Iam
employed by the Securities and Exchange Commission (“Commission” or “SEC”) as an Assistant
Chief Litigation Counsel with the Division of Enforcement (“Division”) in the Commission’s
Home Office in Washington, D.C. I represent the Division as trial counsel in the above-captioned
matter.

2. Except as otherwise stated, I have personal knowledge of the matters set forth in

this Declaration, and, if called as a witness, I could and would competently testify under oath to the

facts stated herein.



3. I'make this Supplemental Declaration in support of the Division’s Motion for
Summary Disposition against Respondents Ascension Asset Management, LLC (“Ascension”) and
Grenville M. Gooder, Jr. (“Gooder”) (collectively “Respondents”).

4, The purpose of this Supplemental Declaration is to amend and supplement certain
paragraphs of my Declaration in support of the Division’s Motion for Summary Disposition
against Respondents, filed in this matter on July 22, 2019 (the “Pilgrim Declaration”).

5. Paragraph 7 of the Pilgrim Declaration is amended as follows: “Attached hereto as
Exhibit 3 is a true and correct copy of an Investment Adviser Association (“IAA”) bulletin dated
March 3, 2014 that I am advised by Division staff was produced to the Division by Ascension and
marked as Exhibit 76 in Gooder’s investigative testimony on December 12, 2017. The JAA
business record certification accompanying Exhibit 3 should be disregarded because that version of
the bulletin was produced to the Division by Ascension, not the JAA.”

6. Attached as Exhibit 3A to this Supplemental Declaration is a true and correct
copy of the same IAA bulletin dated March 3, 2014 that is referenced in paragraph 5 above, which
was produced to the Division by IAA, along with an accompanying business record certification
from the IAA.

7. Paragraph 9 of the Pilgrim Declaration is amended as follows: “Attached hereto as
Exhibit S is a true aﬁd correct copy of an IAA Alert dated January 7, 2010 that the Division staff '
has informed me it accessed via the Internet by using the following hyperlink:
hitp://64.211.220.137/eweb/Dynamicpage.aspx?webcode=demail&cct_key=ebcde3b1-6f2c-466e-
ad22-cOcabfdcac9c&site=emailarch (“IAA Alert: January 7, 2010 — SEC Publishes New Adviser
Custody Rule; IAA to Host Webinar”). The IAA business record certification accompanying

Exhibit 5 should be disregarded because that version of the IAA Alert was not produced to the staff



by the JAA.” A copy of the document providing hyperlinks to IAA Alerts that the Division staff
advised me they received from IAA is attached hereto as Exhibit 5A, which was marked as
Exhibit 84 in Gooder’s investigative testimony on December 12, 2017.

I declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true and correct.

Executed on August 9, 2019.

Nicholas A. Pilgrim

Securities and Exchange Commission
100 F Street, NE

Washington, DC 20549

COUNSEL FOR
DIVISION OF ENFORCEMENT
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In the Matter of Ascension Asset Management, LLC and Grenville M. Gooder, Jr.

Administrative Proceeding File. No. 3-19024
Service List

Pursuant to Commission Rule of Practice 151 (17 CF.R. § 201.151), 1 certify that the
foregoing Supplemental Declaration of Nicholas Pilgrim in support of the Division of
Enforcement’s Motion for Summary Disposition Against Respondents Ascension Asset
Management, LLC and Grenville M. Gooder, Jr. was served on August 9, 2019 upon the
following parties as follows:

BY E-MAIL

Thomas J. McGonigle
Murphy & McGonigle
1001 G Street, N.W.
Seventh Floor
Washington, DC 20001
(202) 661-7010 Direct
(202) 661-7059 Fax

thomas.mcgonigle@mmlawus.com
Counsel for Respondents

Counsel for the Division of Enforcement
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[FOR DOMESTIC U.S. RECORDS]

DECLARATION OF GAIL C. BERNSTEIN CERTIFYING RECORDS
OF REGULARLY CONDUCTED BUSINESS ACTIVITY

1, the undersigned, Gail C. Bernstein, pursuant to 28 U.S,C. § 1746, declare that:
1. Iam employed by the Investnent Adviser Association as General Counsel and by reason

of my position am authiorizéd and qualified to make this declaration, having supervised
the records production.

2. 1 further certify that thi documents submitted-on October 31, 2017 and stamped IAA —
00000001-00003051 are true copies of records that were:

(a) made at ornear the time of the.occurrence of the matters set forth therein, by, or from
information transwiitted by, a person-with knowledge of those matters;

(b) kept in the course of regulerly conducted business activity; and
(¢) made by the regularly conducted business activity asa regular practice.

1 declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true and correct. Executed on
November 16, 2018.

SEC-IAA-E-0000001

https://enf-ed2-ho:8443/axcng/resources/brava/7dd7c9al fbl 6/lib/client.html?logLevel=error 7/15/2019
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& 2014 1AA Alf Righis Raserved

Regulators Heighten Focus on Cybersecurity

Recent developments at the
SEC, the White House, and FINRA
reflect regulators” growing interest in
cybersecurity issues across financial
markets and other sectors. “Regulators’
increased focus on cybersecurity
highlights the importance to investment
advisers of effectively managing
cybersecurity threats,” said David
Tittsworth, 1AA Executive Director,
“Cybersecurity breaches in the
news serve as a reminder that these
incidents are on the rise, and the asset
management industry is no exception.”

SEC. On January 30, Jane Jarcho,
National Associate Director of the
National Exam Program in the Office
of Compliance Inspections and
Examinations, spoke at the SEC's
Compliance Outreach Program for
investment adviser and investment
company senior officers in Washington,
D.C. Ms. Jarcho emphasized that
an investment adviser’s compliance
policies and procedures need to
adequately address both external and

“Regulators’ increased focus
on cybersecurity highlights
the importance to investment
advisers of effectively

managing cybersecurity
threats.”

— David Tittsworth,
{AA Executive Director

internal cybersecurity risks and threats
to the firm and its clients.

The SEC staff recommended that
an investment adviser’s policies and
procedures address ways to detect,
prevent, and respond to cyber attacks.
The staff suggested that these policies
and procedures should specifically
address: (1) adequate due diligence
on the reliability of certain vendors
to protect information technology

(IT) systems; {2) monitoring vendor
access to internal systems; (3)
managing employee usage of internal
electronic systems, such as e-mail,
particularly immediately before and
after an employee leaves the firm;
and (4) providing adequate IT training
to employees so that they use a firm's
systems responsibly during their
employment. The archived webcast
of the SEC's Compliance Outreach
Program is available at http:/iwww.
sec.qov/news/otherwebcasts/2014/
complianceoutreachns013014.shtml,
Congress has
also expressed
" an interest in data
security issues.
On February 6,
SEC Chair Mary
Jo White testified
before the Senate
Banking Committee
regarding data

SEC Chair Mary Jo
White

Continued on page 9
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TINVESTMENT ADVISER
; A §°s0-Clt ATI1ON

Last month, | notified our president and Board that | will step down
from my position as 1AA Executive Director early nextyear (February
6, 2015, to be pre cise).

ltis a vast understatement to say that | have enjoyed and

appreciated the opportunity to serve the IAAJICAA. Since my first day an the job—0Qctober
16, 1996—1 have had the privilege of working with hundreds of our members, aswell as
with a very talented and dedicated staff. lthasbeenan extremely fulfilling professional and

personal experience far me.

| am proud of what we have accomplished together. In 1996, the ICAA had two employees
in New Yark, annual revenues of $650,000, and 200 member firms that collectively managed
51 trillion in assets. By the end of this year, the 1AA will employ 17 full-time staff. The
organization’s revenues will exceed $4 million and the |IAA's membership will exceed 575
firms that collectively manage more than §12 trillion in assets, in addition to more than

30 associate members. Mostimportant, the broad range of advocacy. compliance, and
educational resources and benefits provided by the Assaciation to its membership has
continued to evolve and expand as the organization has grown.

The 1AA's future is very bright. The need for the services the |AA provides toits members has
never been more compelling. [nits most recent strategic plan (December 2012), our Board
identified a number of focus areas that should be emphasized to fulfill the 1AN's purpose of
serving the interests of SEC-registered investment advisory firms. These key focus areas
include advocacy, membership services, marketing, governance, and infrastructure.

The potential for future growth of the 1AA is enormous. The |AA certainly could double o
triple the size of its current membership. There are hundreds of advisory firms that shiould
support the |AAs activities and that already benefit from our legislative and regulatory efforts.
Growing the membership will give the IAA additional resources to provide more services 10
all members. | strongly encourage gach of you to make an effort to recruit other investment
advisory firms 1o empower the 1AA to reach its full potential in future years.

In providing a year's natice, it is my intention to provide ample opportunity for the 1AA Board
to explore and exercise appropriate options to identify my successor. | look forward to
working with each of you in the coming months and hope to connect with you at our Annual
Leadership Conference in Palm Beach. Again, thank you for the opportunity ta serve you and

this terrific organization.

Best regards,
Dol B Tatamoth

David G. Tittsworth
JAA Executive Director

T1AA P\IEEVS%ETTF:’ 1
ntial Treatment R ) 1 ' ARCF 4
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SEC Hosts Compliance Outreach Program

On January 30, 2014, the SEC hosted
its latest National Compliance Out-
reach Program for chief compliance of-
ficers (CCOs) and other senior officers
of investment companies and invest-
ment advisers. Speakers and panelists
included SEC staff from the National
Examination Program (NEP), the Divi-
sion of Enforcement, and the Division
of Investment Management (IM), as
well as a number of CCOs, The agenda
included the SEC's examination and
regulatory priorities for 2014, topics for
private fund advisers and registered in-
vestment companies, valuation issues,
and the obligations of CCOs.

Examination Priorities

Reinforcing opening remarks made
by SEC Chair Mary Jo White, Jane
Jarcho, National Associate Director
of the Investment Adviser/Investment
Company examination program, stated
that the examination priorities for 2014
would include a focus on cybersecurity
issues, with a planned review of the poli-
cies that asset managers have in place
to prevent, detect, and respond to cyber
attacks. Of the 2014 NEP examination
priorities, Jarcho specifically addressed
wrap fee programs, compliance with the
requirements of the JOBS Act rules, is-
sues presented by dually registered in-
vestment advisers and broker-dealers,
and the initiative to examine advisers
that have never been examined.

With respect to wrap fee programs,
Jarcho said that the SEC staff plans
to examine whether advisers’ policies
and procedures are being implemented
in a manner to ensure that: (1) fiduciary
and contractual obligations are being
disclosed to clients; (2) they address
suitability of wrap accounts for clients;
(3) transaction fees are appropriately
disclosed and applied, including any
breakpoint discounts; and (4) clients
who trade infrequently are not put in

: : oy
k You for Attending Our Open House!

On January 239 at its Washington; D.C.
office in Farragut Square, the IAA hosted a
reception for JAA member firms attending
the SEC's National Compliance Outreach
Program for Investment Companies and
Investment Advisers. The |AA would like

to thank the many members who were able to attend, All who attended
. seemed to enjoy meeting one-another and the |AA staff. We look forward

- toseeing you in connection with the SEC's next National Compliance Out-

reach ngram for Investment Companies and Investment Advisers.

=/

fee-based brokerage accounts (ie, re-
verse churning).

The NEP has established a spe-
cialized working group with experts
in marketing and sales practices. Ac-
cording to Jarcho, this working group
will train examiners to detect and pre-
vent fraudulent or misleading adver-
tising practices. In particular, Jarcho
revealed that the NEP plans to conduct
a focused examination sweep that will
review practices within advisory firms
toverify accredited investor status.

According to Jarcho, the SEC staff
is also concerned about the migration
away from the broker-dealer busi-
ness model towards the investment
adviser model. The staff is particularly
concerned that clients do not fully ap-
preciate the differences between com-
mission-based brokerage accounts
and advisory accounts. Jarcho noted
that dual registrants should be cogni-
zant of the differences in regulations
that apply, particularly with respect to
supervisory responsibilities (e.g., over-
sight.of branch offices and representa-
tives), the books and records require-
ments, the fiduciary duty of advisers
versus the suitability requirements for
broker-dealers, and disclosures made
to clients. Jarcho indicated that the
NEP’s examination focus in this area
is intended, in part, to inform Commis-

sioners as they consider harmonization
issues more broadly.

Jarcho also stated that, over the
course of the next two years, the staff
plans to examine 25 to 40 percent of
advisers that have been registered for
more than three years but have never
previously been examined. She noted
that the staff from each regional office
has discretion to conduct either risk
assessment examinations {i.e., in order
to assign “risk ratings” to firms after
reviewing requested records) or pres-
ence examinations where the staff se-
lects certain focus areas.

Enforcement and Regulatory
Priorities

Priorities highlighted by senior staff
from the Division of Enforcement's
Asset Management Unit included
misallocation of funds, side-by-side
management of multiple private
funds by a single investment adviser,
valuation of assets, soft dollars, best
execution, and whether advisers had
adequate compliance policies and
procedures in place. David Grim,
Deputy Director of IM, stated that the
Division's rulemaking initiatives for 2014
include reviewing comments received

Continued on page S
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regarding the 2013 money market fund
rule proposals and considering whether
certain exemptive orders for exchange
traded funds should be codified. Non-
rulemaking initiatives cited by Grim
include service provider oversight,
where the staff plans to focus on the
diligence required for investment in
“alternative strategies.” In particular,
the staff will consider the appropriate
oversight of sub-advisers that should
be required, particularly for private
fund advisers that manage assets of
retail funds and that are not familiar
with the requirements applicable to
registered investment companies. Grim
also revealed that IM staff is actively
considering amendments to Form ADV
to allow for “umhrella™ registration
for related advisers of a registered
adviser consistent with the guidance
the Division had issued in 2012. See
American Bar Association, Business
Law Section, SEC No-Action Letter
(Jan. 18, 2012), available at http://
www,sec.qov/divisions/investment/
noaction/2012/aba011812.htm.

Highlights of Panel Discussions

Among the topics covered by the
panels were the SEC staff's observa-
tions from the presence examina-
tion initiative for private fund advis-
ers including certain industry trends,
compliance risks associated with the
various fund structures (including fee
accelerations and expense shifting),
potential conflicts of interest, and the
risks of “favoritism” of one client to
another without appropriate disclosure
(ie., allocations of co-investments).
The speakers on the valuation panel
discussed the various issues raised by
differing valuation practices, including
methodologies and the use of pricing
service vendors.

Panelist also discussed the obliga-
tions of CCOs, including the role the

Top: Doug Scheidt and panelists
addressing CCO audience; Right: Question
and answer period for advisers with more
than $1 billion RAUM

CCO plays within the advisory firm. Ac-
cording to the SEC staff, the CCO should
be someone who is empowered, has
access to needed information, and has
the “ear of management.” The SEC staff
also discussed recent enforcement ac-
tions involving CCOs. The staff noted
that while CCOs have been charged in
recent SEC enforcement actions, it has
usually been the case that these CCOs
were wearing multiple hats within the
firm and the charges usually related to
conduct involving these other capaci-
ties. With respect to liability for failing
to supervise, the staff emphasized that
they would look at the CCO’s various
responsibilities within the firm to see if
there is a supervisory role among them.

There was also some discussion
about self-reporting material viola-
tions where the SEC staif implied that
risk assessments would be more fa-
vorable for advisers that self-report.
Mark Dowdell, Assistant Director in
the SEC’s Philadelphia Regional Office,
encouraged advisers to self-report ma-
terial errors discovered during reviews
of policies and procedures. Dowdell
stated that the report to the staff should
include the steps the adviser has taken

to “fix” the problem and, if applicable,
reimburse investors. According to
Dowdell, advisers that self-report are
looked at more favorably for purposes
of risk-assessments and foster a "good
relationship of trust” with the staff. In-
dustry panelists added that it is not al-
ways a clear decision to self-report and
that advisers should consult counsel.
In his closing remarks, the Direc-
tor of the SEC’s examination program,
Drew Bowden, emphasized that the
SEC is "not targeting compliance offi-
cers” and that the staff does not con-
sider the examinations as a "gotcha ex-
ercise.” Bowden added that he views
CCOs as “partners” in the staff's efforts
to improve compliance in the industry.
The presentation materials and
handouts from the SEC’s program are
available at hitp//www.sec.gov/info/
cco/ccons2014.htm. Please contact a

member of the 1AA legal team with any
questions. @

PAA NEWSIETIE
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Form PF Developments

The SEC recently addressed Form
PF in two arenas: the SEC staff updated
its: FAQs and SEC Chair Mary Jo White
testified about Form PF before a con-
gressional committee.

Updated FAQs

On February 12, the SEC’s Division of
Investment Management updated the
Form PF Frequently Asked Questions
(FAQs) to provide additional guidance
to SEC-registered advisers fulfilling
their periodic reporting requirements on
Form PE.

The updated FAQs addressed the
following matters:

* Classification of a private equity
fund for reporting purposes. (Sec-
tionD.1)

* Agaregation and the reporting of
parallel managed accounts, (Sec-
tion E.2)

* A clarification of Instruction 7 on
whether filers should report if they
include or disregard the reporting
of fund investments in other private
funds. (Section F.5)

* Question 7 and whether to report

certain information regarding the
value of the reporting fund’s bor-
rowings for qualifying hedge funds.
(Section 12.3)

* Reporting the aggregate value of
all outstanding derivative positions
for qualifying hedge funds for Ques-
tions 13 and 44. {Section 13.2)

* Whether assets and liabilities that
are not reported at fair value and
therefore are not reflected in the
fair value hierarchy, such as certain
receivables and payables, ‘should
be included in the cost-based col-
umn in Question 14. (Section 14.2)

*  Whether cash and cash equiva-
lents should be included when
providing a summary of a reporting
fund's assets and liabilities in Ques-
tion 14. (Section 14.3)

*  Whether responses to the “% of
NAV” column in Question 20 should
add up to more than 100%. (Section
20.1)

*  Whether filers should report the
value of a reporting fund’s Reverse
Repos as the Short Value in the
“Repo” sub-asset class in Ques-
tions 26 and 30. (Section 26.5)

* For qualifying hedge funds, report-
ing the aggregate dollar amount

Page 6 0f 28

of borrowings and cash financing
available in Questions 46(a) and 43.
(Section 46.2)

Filers should periodically review the
FAQs for the latest guidance on Form PF.
The FAQs are available at: http://www.
sec.qov/divisions/investment/pfrd/pfrd-

fag.shtml.

Chair White Provides a Report
on Farm PF during Congressional
Testimony

SEC Chair White's testimony be-
fore the Senate Banking Committee
on February 6 included a report on the
progress of Form PF data gathering. In
written testimony, Chair White noted
that the Commission first received a full
complement of Form PF filings last year
due to the staggering of filing dates. To
date, approximately 2,400 investment
advisers have filed reports on approxi-
mately 7,000 hedge funds, 66 liquidity
funds, and 6,000 private equity funds.
Chair White noted that the protection
of Form PF data is subject to enhanced
confidentiality provisions established

Continued on page 12

The IAA invites mem-
bers to request copies of
a new brochure to share
with  other investment
advisory  professionals.
The 8-page *“Welcome to |
the IAA” provides a brief |
overview of the Asso-
ciation and highlights the |
variety of resources avail-  |_ n—
able to members. The brochure was de-
veloped as part of an ongoing effort to

| Welome

3 ¥

niala

£ firm to join the Asso-

-~ ciation. The brochure is

E‘;ﬁavailabie online and ac-

. i companies the printed
e newsletter.

~ A growing membership further

strengthens the IAA's advocacy efforts

and allows the Associationto expandits
services to members. One of the most
effective means for growth is through
the personal referrals by members with
their peers in the industry. The bro-
chure is a convenient “leave behind”
piece that reinforces membership val-
ue and return on investment. Contact
Alex Aderton, Director of Membership
and Marketing, to obtain any number of
copies of the brochure. B

MARC Han[T)n llj'nial Treatment Requested

1aA - Bbd01917

IAA NEWSLETTER

https://enf-ed2-ho:8443/axcng/resources/brava/7dd7c9al fb16/ lib/client.html?logLevel=error

8/8/2019



Page 7 of 28

IAA ANNUAL
LEADERSHIP CONFERENCE

2014
PALM BEACH, FL » MAY 7-9,2014.

Moving Forward

The Investment Adviser Association is hosting its
2014 Annual Leadership Conference in Palm Beach, Florida, May 7-9.

Join executives from a variety of investment advisory firms for a special
opportunity to advance yourf rm and develop valued reiatmnsh:ps.

it i

Strategic Focus * Understand developments and impacts of
federal policy changes

Experience high-level sessions that will broaden « Position your company and your employees
your thinking and help you position your company for growth
for success. Learn about emerging global and
domestic trends, gain insights from thought lead- EXEGH’ﬁV& Participants
ers about how to foster high-performing teams, and .

| shareideas with peers from investment advisory Attendees include JAA Members and 1A Associate
firms similar to yours. Members. Non-member senior staff with SEC-

registered investment advisory firms also are invited
* Hear from business experts and industry to register.*

thought leaders

+» Acquire fresh perspectives from peers on
shared concerns

= Learn about emerging economic and
investment issues

« Benchmark your firm and shape your

* Chief Executive Officers and Presidents
« Firm Partners and Owners

* Managing Directors

+ Vice Presidents and Senior Staff

» Chief Financial Officers 3
* Chief Operating Officers \

business strategy %
» Discuss your business challenges and gain b ChEEf Legal Officers
nEwideas « Chief Investment Officers
Conference Registration ;

Get more conference details and register at: www.investmentadviser.org >> Events

IAA Member - | AR “" Spouse/Guest of
- : Associate Member: i Attendee: "
3 |
Regular Rate (Register on or after March 1) 1,695 ! 395 1
See the conference web page for additional registration options, event rates and cancelfation policies.

3
“Not an IAA Member? Senior staff with SEC-registered investment adwsnry firms are invited to attend the conference. £
i Choase the special “RIA” rate when leglslenug H

= : il

1AA NE MARCH 2014
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Treasury’s Qﬂ?ce. of Financial Research Asset
Management Report Criticized

At two recent Congressional hear-
ings, the Director of the Treasury De-
partment’s Dffice of Financial Research
(OFR), Richard Berner, faced questions
and criticisms relating to the quality of
OFR’s Asset Manage-
ment and Financial Sta-
bility Report released
last fall. Some of the
prominent areas of focus
included:

= The absence of ad-
equately  solicited
input of experiences
and perspectives from the asset
management industry. Commit-
tee members noted disapprovingly
that those who had participated in
meetings with OFR felt that there
was little effective two-way com-
munication.

= The perceived poor working rela-
tionship with the SEC, as demon-
strated by the SEC's decision to
make the report available for com-
ment. Members claimed these ac-
tions illustrated the SEC's view that
sufficient industry input was miss-
ing from the development of the re-
port.

* OFR's data gathering and method-
ological limitations evidenced an
apparent OFR failure to obtain data
directly from asset management
firms-and OFR’s lack of robust infor-
mation-sharing mechanisms with
other agencies.

+ The OFR report’s failure to grasp
certain fundamental dynamics of
the asset management industry
might lead to a flawed justification
for labeling asset managers and

their managed funds as “systemi-
cally important.”

Committee members remained un-
satisfied by Berner's responses to their
questions regarding the
reportand its possible use
by the Financial Stability
Oversight Council (FSOC)
to designate some of the
principal participants in
the asset management
industry as non-bank sys-
temically important finan-
cial institutions (SIFls).
Some of these unanswered questions
include:

= Why systemic risk would result
from malfeasance or incompetence
on the part of asset managers since
investors and clients can eas-
ily shift their investments from one
manageror fund to another?

*  Why the asset management indus-
try as a whole could pose a sys-
temic risk for engaging in activities
such as “herding” when the very
nature of the industry includes cer-
tain firms taking positions opposite
of other firms, such as through
hedging and short-selling, which
actually contributes to liguidity, sta-
bility, and diversity?

* Why the activities discussed in
the report could not be effectively
handled through additional indus-
try-wide regulation by existing
regulators, as opposed to the firm-
specific prudential regulation that
would flow from a SIFI designation?

*  What the purpose of the OFR report
had been since Berner's own argu-

ments note that the report’s focus
failed to contribute to the FSOC's
mission of identifying systemically
important entities that could henefit
from prudential regulation?

The hearings also discussed OFR's
annual report, as well as broader is-
sues surrounding OFR's risk prioritiza-
tion, process, and efforts at improving
data standards. Nevertheless, the qual-
ity of the asset management report was
a prominent area of focus. Significant
congressional concern remained re-
garding the OFR report’s content and
conclusions, as well as what it signifies
about OFR's progress as an organiza-
tion in terms of its data gathering and
analytic capabilities.

SeeTheAnnualReportand Oversight
of the Office of Financial Research:
Hearing Before the Subcommittee on
Economic Policy of the Committee on
Banking, Housing and Urban Affairs
of the United States Senate, 113th
Congress (Jan. 29, 2014), available at
http://www.banking.senate.gov/public/
index.cfm?FuseAction=Hearings.
Hearing&Hearing |D=a94d96f9-cd80-
45dc-b271-d4d730ch8c19; see The
Annual Report of the Office of Financial
Research: Hearing Before Oversight
and Investigations Subcommittee of
the Committee on Financial Services
of the House of Representatives,
113th  Congress (Feb. 5, 2014),
available at httpy//financialservices.

house.gov/calendar/eventsingle.

aspx?Event|D=368194. H
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security. Part of Chair
testimony concentrated on the SEC's
efforts to protect customer data,
including the SEC staff's discussions
of cyber threats to the financial sector.
In response to a guestion about the
impact of the SEC's budget constraints,
Chair White emphasized that data
security remains a priority. She noted
that despite the challenges, the SEC is
devoting resources to its examination
and enforcement programs that are
directed at data security. See Oversight
of Financial Stability and Data Security,
Before the United States Senate
Committee on Banking, Housing, and
Urban Affairs, Testimony of Mary Jo
White, Chair (Feb. 6, 2014}, available at
http:/fwww.sec.gov/News/Testimony/
Detail/Testimony/1370540757488%.
UwPX6ysobid. The archived
hearing is available at http:/fwww.
banking.senate.gov/public/
index.cfm?FuseAction=Hearings.
earin aring_|D=82a669045-f3b3-
dc7e-b1df-1bb08e694e80.

On February 14, the SEC announced
that it will host a roundtable on March
26 to discuss cybersecurity issues and
challenges for market participants,
including addressing those concerns
and disclosing cybersecurity threats
and incidents. The roundtable will
be held at the SEC's headquarters in
Washington, D.C. and will be webcast
live on the SEC's website. The agenda
and participants will be published in the
coming weeks, and information about
the roundtable is available at http://
www.sec.gov/News/PressRelease/
Detail/PressRelease/13705407336262.
Uw0OUsSsoBic.

The White House. A 2013
Presidential Executive Order called for
the development
of a voluntary
| risk-hased set of
industry standards
and best practices

“THE WHITE HOUSRE
b e I

White's

to help organizations manage
cybersecurity risks. On February 12,
the National Institute of Standards and
Technology published the resulting
“Framework for Improving Critical
Infrastructure  Cybersecurity.” The
Framework aims to enable firms to
apply risk management principles and
best practices to address and manage
cybersecurity risk based on business
needs without impoesing additional
regulatory requirements. The NIST
Framewark is available at http://www.
nist.gov/cyberframework/upload/
cybersecurity-framework-021214-final.
pdf.

FINRA. In other related news,
in January the Financial Industry
Regulatory Authority (FINRA)
announced that it is conducting an
assessment of
firms’ approaches

to managing
cyber-security
threats. FINRA's
focus is consistent with the SEC's
National Examination Program

published priorities for 2014. According
to the SEC's list, one of the "core risks”
that are specific to registered broker-
dealersthatthe SEC staffwill focusonis
cybersecurity. According to FINRA, itis
conducting this assessment “in light of
the critical role information technology
(IT) plays in the securities industry, the
increasing threat to firms’ IT systems
from a variety of sources, and the
potential harm to investors, firms, and
the financial system as a whole that
these threats pose.” FINRA's goals in
performing this assessment are to:

» Understand better the types of
threats that firms face;

 Increase its understanding of firms’
risk appetite, exposure and major
areas of vulnerabilities in their IT
systems;

« Understand better firms” approach-

fnra? _
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es to managing these threats, in-
cluding through risk assessment
processes, IT protocols, application
management practices and super-
vision; and

« Share observations and findings
with firms, as appropriate.

The assessment will address
a number of areas related to
cybersecurity, including firms”:

« Approaches to information technol-
ogy risk assessment;

»  Business continuity plans in case of
a cyber-attack;

« Organizational structures and re-
porting lines;

+ Processes for sharing and obtain-
ing information about cybersecurity
threats;

» Understanding of concerns and

threats faced by the industry;

Assessment of the impact of cyber-

attacks on the firm over the past

twelve months;

+ Approaches to handling distributed
denial of service attacks;

» Training programs,

» Insurance coverage for cybersecu-
rity-related events; and

« Contractual arrangements with
third-party service providers.

FINRA's announcement is
available at  hup://www.finra.org/
Industry/Requlation/Guidance

TargetedExaminationLetters/P443219.

As part of its 2014 webinar series,
the IAA will hold a webinar on
Cybersecurity for Investment Advisers
on Wednesday, April 30 from 1:00-
2:15 pm ET. Additional information will
follow.

Please contact a member of the IAA
legal team with any questions on these
matters, B
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INFA Seeks Comments on Potential Capital Requirement
Jor CPOs/CTAs and Other Customer Protection Measures

On January 23, the National Futures
Association (NFA) issued ‘a Notice to
Members requesting comments re-
garding a potential capital requirement
for NFA members that are commodity
pool operators (CPDs) and/or commod-
ity trading advisors (CTAs). NFA also is
seeking feedback concerning whether
to impose certain other customer pro-
tection measures on CPOs.

NFAs request follows 26 “Member
Responsibility Actions™ that NFA pri-
marily issued to CPO and CTA members
overthe past three years involving mis-
use of customer funds, misstatement of
net asset values, and misstatement of
performance information. NFA stated
that it is looking at ways to strengthen
the regulatory structure governing CPO
operations to provide greater protec-

tion for cus-
tomer funds.
Additionally,
NFA is ex-
ploring ways
to  ensure
that CPOs and CTAs have sufficient as-
sets to operate as going concerns.

In its request, NFA seeks input on
whether it should impose a minimum
capital requirement on CPO or CTA
members; if so, how to calculate and
determine the required amount: and al-
ternatives for ensuring that CPOs/CTAs
have sufficient funds to operate as go-
ing concerns.

According to the notice, NFA also is
considering the following areas to pro-
vide greater protection for customer
funds: (1) independent third party au-

thorization for disbursements of pool
funds; (2) independent third party prep-
aration of NAV valuation and monthly or
quarterly statements; (3) independent
third party preparation of performance
results; (4) independent third party veri-
fication of pool assets; and (5) whether
it is appropriate for inactive CPOs and
CTAs, of which there are hundreds, to
remain NFA members.

Comments on the request for data
must be submitted by April 15. If you
would like to participate in the IAAS
comment letter, please join the |AA's
CFTC Working Group. The text of the
request for comments is available at
https://www.nfa.futures.org/news/
newsNotice.asp?ArticlelD=4377. B

SEC Releases Draft Strategic Plan for 2014-2018
Plan Focus includes Analysis of Investment Adviser and Broker-Dealer
Regulatory Requirements

On February 3, the SEC released a
draft of its Strategic Plan for 2014-18,
pursuant to the Govern-
ment Performance and Re-
sults Modernization Act of
2010. The document states [
the agency’s Mission, Vi-
sion, Values, and Resourc-
es, It then identifies four
overall strategic goals: the
establishment and mainte-
nance of an effective regulatory envi-
ronment, detecting and deterring vio-
lations of the federal securities laws,
increasing investars’ access to infor-
mation, and enhancing performance by
more effective management of human
information and financial capital.

As part of its first objective, the

document states that the SEC will “con-
tinue to analyze whether the different
regulatory obligations that
apply to broker-dealers and
investment advisers provid-
ing personalized investment
advice should be changed
for the protection of inves-
tors.” The draft also includes
an initiative to “[mjodernize
the regulatory treatment and
valuation of certain portfolio holdings
of registered investment companies,”
including the treatment of derivatives
held by mutual funds, exchange-traded
funds, and other investment companies.
Two other initiatives outlined as part of
the first objective include strengthen-
ing oversight of registered municipal

advisors and increased monitoring of
disclosures related to asset-backed
securities. Further, the SEC said it plans
to implement “many of the recommen-
dations highlighted in the July 2012 Re-
port on the Municipal Securities Mar-
ket” through joint initiatives with FINRA
and MSRB *“to enhance the market
structure for fixed income securities,”
with a focus on facilitating liquidity and
best execution.

Also part of the SEC's first objec-
tive is enhancing the transparency and
fairness of capital markets by review-
ing algorithmic and automated trading,
enhancing post-trade transparency of
dark pools, reducing reliance on credit
rating agencies, enhancing oversight

Continued on page 13
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UPCOMING COMPLIANCE eA'rE_s-

The following selected compliance dates are listed
as a reminder for JAA Newsletter readers. If you
have questions or need more information about
any of the dates, please contact the IAA legal staff.

5 March 3: Large hedge fund advisers (wrth at Ieast$l 5

PFfor the quarter ended December 31.%

)

March ‘Large CPOs wnh between $1.5 bllhon and $5

K arter rnost recently comp!eted pnor to
; 15) must file Form. CPO—PHBfur the quaner end
:December 31 (60 days. after December 31) x

‘ter ended December 31. Mid-size CPOs that file CFTC
Form CPO-POR (Schedules A and B) by March 31 will
satisfy this requirement. Small GPOs that file CFTC Form
CPO-POR {Schedule A plus Schedule'of Investments}
by March 31 will satisfy this requirement. Form PE filers
that ﬂe CFTC Form CPO-POR (Schedule A plus | Schedule
of Investments) by March 1 or March 30, dependmgen

- AUM, wnII satisfy this requ:rement

March 3: A CPO that claims an exemption or exclusmn :
under CFTC. Flegu!atmn 4.5,4.3(a)(1), 4.13(a)(2), 4.13(a)

4.14(a)(8) must reaffirm the applicable notice of exemp-

after the end of the calendar year).

March 31: Calendar-year-filers’ (including exempt
reporting advisers’) deadline to file an “annual updating
amendment” to Form ADVwhich includes state notice
filings and amendments to Form ADV, Part 2, if any (90
days after the end of the fiscal year).

March 31: All other CPOs must file Form CPO-POR190
days after December 31).*

March 31: CPOs must file with the NFA and distribute
an Annual Report, certified by an independent public
accountant, to each participant in each pool it operates

submit a request for extension for a fund-of-funds.

 tion through NFAs Electronic Exemption System (60 days

: Man:h 3. NFA-member CPOs must file NFA Form: POB{or'

file CFTC Form CPO-POR if a “large filer”) for the quar- ;
-Apnl 30- anare equrty fund adwsars and smal[er pn-

vate fund advisers must file anr PF for the year ended
& December31.* )

{3), or 4.13(a}{5) or a CTA that claims an exemption under.

{90 days after the end of the pool’s fiscal year). CPOs can

- f"Apnl 10‘ If: needed ﬁle an amended Form 13H to .
~ billion RAUM attributable to hedge funds) must file Form -

April 2 25: Fmanmal |nst1tut|ons must reglster anthe IRS’s
new FATCA Reg:stmuon Purtal

 April 30: Calendar-year-filers’ deadiine for delivering

~ the ﬁscai year).

~ tion 13() securities must file Form 13F (45 days after the
* quarter ended March 31). ;

- the quarter ended March 31.

reflect changes made: durmg the first calendarquarter
{promptly after the end of the quarter).

Apnl 15: Large hqmdltyfund advisers (with at least S1
\ |ty funds ami regis-
red_meney marke fumts}m i file Farm PFfer the
quarter: anded Marc'hsl B

to clients a current brochure with a summary of mate-
rial changes or a summary of material changes with an
offer to provide the brochure HZI] days afterthe end af

May 15: Institutional i mveslmenrmanagers that exercise
investment discretion over $100 million or more in Sec-

May 15: NFA-member CTAs must file NFA Form PB for

May 30: Large hedge fund advisers {with at least $1.5
billion RAUM attributable to hedge funds) must file
Form PFfor the quarter ended March 31.%

May 30: Large CPOs must file Form CPO-PQR for the
guarter ended March 31.

May 30: NFA-member CPOs must file NFA Form PQR
(or file CFTC Form CPO-PQR if a “large filer”) for the
quarter ended March 31.

*This deadline applies to advisers with a December 31 41
fiscal year-end. ® ‘
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House Committee Challenges Regulators on Volcker Rule

Implementation

On February 5, the House Financial
Services Committee heard from the
heads of five financial regulators on
implementing the Volcker Rule—the
Fed, OCC, FDIC, CFTC, and SEC. Some
Committee members seemed in search
of a collaborative framework ade-
quate to address all of the implemen-
tation, interpretative, and enforcement
issues relating to the Volcker Rule. The
regulators responded that they have
formed an interagency working group
to achieve exactly that purpose.-Some
committee members observed the ah-
sence of structured leadership among
regulators and questioned whether
structural changes might help com-
" pensate for any inherent jurisdictional
confusion that can arise as multiple
entities and activities separately in-
terpret the same extensive regulatory
mandates.

The three banking regulators touted
their established experience of inter-
agency cooperation that could serve
as a template for the working group,
Committee members were skeptical
whether that template based on pru-
dential banking regulation and flexibili-
ty would work effectively with the more
rules-based approach of the market
regulators, such as the SEC and CFTC.
These differences can complicate a
simplistic overlay of a typical banking
regulatory approach.

Committee members urged that the

regulatory processes for providing in-
terpretative guidance be more formal-
ized and that such guidance be publicly
available. The Committee members
acknowledged that the regulators face
compliance challenges in integrating
data regarding the activities of regu-
lated entities across the -agencies and
suggested consideration of a central-
ized platform for information sharing,
housed perhaps at the Department of
Treasury’s Office of Financial Research.

Members of Congress criticized
the regulators’ failure to include a for-
mal cost-benefit analysis with the final
rule adoption and the regulators’ deci-
sion to-omit a re-proposal of the rule as
the terms of the rule became clearer.
While the SEC was not formally obli-
gated to prepare an official cost-bene-
fit analysis as part of the collaborative
rulemaking process, Chair White was
grilled about departing from former
Chair Mary Schapiro’s agency prac-
tice of preparing a cost-benefit analy-
sis for new rules. White countered
that cost benefit considerations were
interwoven throughout the rule, as the
regulators incorporated the comments
received during the rule proposal pro-
cess in ways that minimized some of
the identified costs. Committee mem-
bers’ criticism of failure to re-propose
the rule pointed to the subsequent
interim final rule providing relief for
forced sales of collateralized debt ob-

ligations backed by trust protected se-
curities (CDO TruPS) and similar issues
regarding collateralized loan obliga-
tions (CLOs). According to some com-
mittee members, those remedial steps
could have been avoided if community
banks and other stakeholders could
have identified such problems ahead of
time.

Committee members addressed
the global and interconnected nature
of the international financial mar-
kets and expressed concern that the
Volcker Rule might place the U.S. at a
competitive disadvantage compared
to other countries that choose not to
adopt strict rules on proprietary trading
and ‘covered funds. The reqgulators re-
sponded that opportunities for regula-
tory arbitrage may exist since no other
jurisdiction has adopted a carbon copy
of the Volcker Rule, but the regulators
had identified and eliminated certain
elements in the final rule that might
have hindered U.S. international com-
petitiveness.

See The Impact of the Volcker
Rule on Job Creators, Part If: Hear-
ing Before the Committee on Financial
Services of the House of Represen-
tatives, 113th Congress (Feb. 5 2014),
available at http://financialservices.
house.gov/calendar/eventsingle.
aspx?EventlD=368193. Contact the I1AA
legal team with any questions or com-
ments. B

Form PF ch!opmerztf—cgﬁﬁqﬁé#ﬁorﬁﬁhgfe 6

under the Dodd-Frank Act, and as a re-
sult (1) the filings are made on a secure
filing system that encrypts data; and (2)
Commission staff has designed and im-
plemented controls for the handling of
Form PF data across the agency. Chair
White emphasized both the importance

of data protection, as well as the criti-
cal role that the information collected
via Form PF plays, observing that the
SEC staff “uses the data in connec-
tion with the Commission’s regulatory
mission, including in examinations, in-
vestigations and investor protection

efforts,” and serves as a “helpful sup-
plement to the staff's overall efforts to
enhance monitoring of the investment
advisory industry to identify trends and
emerging risks.” H
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Volcker Rule

2014 IAA Webinar Series

The 2014 IAA Webinar Series is about to begin. Save the dates for these important legal,
regulatory, and compliance topics forinvestment advisers. Online registration will open soon.

April 10, 2013, 1:30-3:00 pm{ETI
Presenters:

Director, BNY Mellon
« BrianJohnson; SEC: - -

« Kevin Petrasic, Partner, Paul Hastmgs LLP
« Victar R. Siclari, Senior Managing Counsel & Managing

|+ Paul Glenn, Special Gamzsei IM rMonferamr)

Cyﬂér‘securitv for Investment Advisers

Custody Rule

Page 13 of 28

Presenlers:

Apnl 30, 2014, 1:00-2:15 pm [EI’)
Presenters:

{Maderator)

« orcall (202) 293-4222.

of derivatives, and considering new
amendments to money market fund
reforms {which would be designed to
mitigate the likelihood of runs and fa-
cilitate shareholder redemptions dur-
ing times of market stress).

The draft plan also outlines sev-
eral specific performance metrics the
SEC will use to gauge the progress of
its second strategic goal (to promptly
detect and deter violations of federal
securities laws): (1) the percentage of
investment advisers, investment com-
panies, and broker-dealers examined
annually, (2) the percentage of com-
pliance exams concluded timely, ac-
cording to OCIE's deadlines, and (3)
the number of joint exams, information
sharing, and meetings the SEC has with
other regulators.

« John R. ("Jack") Hewitt, szr:mr Gibbons PC,
« Laura L Grossman,. Assrmm General Counsel, IAA

May 14, 2014, 1:00-2:15 pmiET)

-+ Mari-Anne Plsam Partner, Pickard & Djinis LLP
» David Vaughan, Partner; Dechert LLP
« Karen Barr, General Counsel, IAA (Moderator)

| Other Upcoming Webinars

4? Questions? For questions regarding the 2014 Webmar Series, email AAEven;;@mveﬂmgnradwger org

As part of its third objective of in-
creasing investor access to informa-
tion, the SEC aims to collect “investor
focused data from a variety of sources”
to target problematic sales practices,
investment advisers, and brokers, The
SEC plans to assess its progress to-
wards achieving high-quality disclo-

« SEC Examinations
» International Treasury Reporting

lm fbr 201 4-201 8—corzﬁﬁ:mdﬁoﬁg. pag;: s 0

sure to investors through a metric of
comparing the percentage of disclo-
sures made by public companies and
investment companies that are re-
viewed annually.

Planning for the Future, ‘the SEC
Draft Strategic Plan 2014-2018, is
available at  http://www.sec.qov/
about/sec-strategic-
plan-2014-2018-draft.pdf.
If you have questions or
feedback, contact the 1AA
legal team. Comments to
the SEC on the Strategic
Plan can be directed to
performanceplanning@
sec.gov and must be
submitted by March 10. B
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 Regulatory Proposal . Sebisaian oL AR Attarney
- Fx : : : Contact Deadline

) Paul Glenn March 5,
Canadian Regulators Propose Amendments to sobulennds 2014

Sub-Adviser Regulations investmentadviser.org
On December 5, the Canadian Securities Administrators (CSA)
proposed for comment amendments to National Instrument (NI} 31-
103. The significant changes relevant to investment advisers would
be: (1) a new sub-adviser exemption; (2) relief from certain client
obligations for registered sub-advisers under certain conditions; (3}
a prohihition on a registered entity relying on an otherwise available
exemption under certain circumstances; and (4) the removal of
Canadian residency and incorporation requirements for the types
of clients that international advisers are permitted to advise without
registering pursuantto the international adviser exemption, Please see
pages 20-21 of the February IAA Newsletter for more details, A copy of

the proposed amendments is available at https//www.o0s¢.gov.on.ca/
en/Securitieslaw_ni 20131205 _31-103 proposed-amendments.htm.

H . Sanjay Lamba March 10,
CFI'C.Seeks Cnmmeq@ on Applying Cross-Border sofilainhit 2014
Requirements to Activity in the U.S. ianuestmemadviser. oF

On January 3, the Commadity Futures Trading Commission (CFTC)
requested comment on a November 14, 2013 staff advisory.
The advisory addressed the applicability of transaction level
requirements to transactions between CFTC-registered non-U.S.
swap dealers (affiliated with a U.S. person or not) and non-U.S.
persons, where the swaps are “regularly arranged, negotiated,
or executed” by personnel located in the United States. The staff
stated that certain requirements should apply to such dealers, even
though both counterparties are located outside of the U.S, The
advisory also proposed disallowing substituted compliance with
a comparable foreign jurisdiction. The staff extended no-action
relief until September 15, 2014, The CFTC is requesting comment
on whether to adopt the November advisary as CFTC policy or to
instead consider alternative approaches. The request for comment

is available at hngﬂwww.cftc.gov[LawReguIation[FederalRegister[

ProposedRules/2014-00080.
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Shdential Treatment Requested 124 - boorszs

https://enf-ed2-ho:8443/axcng/resources/brava/7dd7¢9al fb16/ lib/client.html?logLevel=error ~ 8/8/2019



Page 15 of 28

Regulatory Proposal - i ; : I 1AA Attorney £ Fling
o e i e .Contact ! Deadline

FSB and 10SCO Propose Methodologies to Assess Non- I"a"'a Gressumlr AL T
aura.grusgman@

Bank Global SIFls investmentadviser.org
On January 8, the Financial Stability Board (FSB) and the i
International Organization of Securities Commissions {I0SCO) |
proposed a framework for assessing whether non-banks should |
be considered global systemically important financial institutions
(SIFls), and requested comments on their proposal. The report
proposes a materiality standard for investment funds of $100 billion
in AUM and an alternative threshold for hedge funds of $400 to
8600 billion in gross notional exposure. The report also questions
whether their proposed methodology should be broadened to
include potentially systemically important asset managers, either
on a stand-alone basis or along with their funds. The FSB/I0SCO

report is available at http://www.financialstabilityboard,org/
publications/r 140108.htm.

! : : . Laura Grossman April 15,
NFA Seeks Comments on Potential Capital Requirement Tatife o it

| and Other Customer Protection Measures for CPOs/CTAs investmentadviser.org

On January 23, the National Futures Association {NFA) issued a
Notice to Members requesting comments on a proposed capital
requirement for NFA members that are commodity pool operators
{CPOs) and/or commodity trading advisors (CTAs). The NFA also
is seeking feedback on whether to impose certain other customer
protection measures on CPOs. The request follows 26 NFA-issued
“Member Responsibility Actions” primarily involving CPO and CTA
! members over the past three years that misused customer funds,
f misstated NAVs, or misstated performance results. In its request,
: the NFA seeks input on whether it should impose a minimum capital
requirement on CPO or CTA members; if so, how to calculate and
determine the required amount; and alternatives for ensuring that
CPOs/CTAs have sufficient funds to operate as going concerns. The
NFA also is considering other areas to provide greater protection
for customer funds, including independent third party authorization
| for disbursements of pool funds and independent preparation
1 of NAV valuation and performance results. A copy of the request
is available at httpsi//www.nfa futures.ora/news/newsNatice
asp?ArticlelD=4377.
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The SEC’s Never-Before Examined Initiative: Are You Ready?

By K. Susan Grafton, Partner, K&L Gates LLP*

On January 9, 2014, the Securities
and Exchange Commission’s (the
“SEC's”) Office of Compliance
Inspections and Examinations (“OCIE")
published its 2014 National Exam
Program (“NEP") priorities, available

at  http//www.sec.gov/about/offices/

i ional-examination- ram-
priorities-2014.pdf, which included
never-before examined investment

advisers. Subsequently, on February
20, 2014, OCIE announced details
regarding its initiative to conduct risk-
based and focused examinations of
these advisers (the “NBE Initiative”),
available athttp://www.sec.gov/about/
offices/ocie/nbe-final-letter-022014,
pdf. The NBE Initiative is separate
from OCIE's “Presence Exam”
initiative, which is directed at private
fund advisers that were required to
register following the enactment of
the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform
and Consumer Protection Act.

The NBE Initiative will particularly
focus on advisers that have been regis-
tered three or more years without being
subject to an exam. In a letter sent to
registered investment advisers that the
SEC hasidentified as having never been
examined, Jane Jarcho, the National
Associate Director IAIC Examinations,
explained that the NBE Initiative will in-
clude (1) risk assessment exams and (2)
focused reviews.

Risk Assessment Exams

Risk assessment exams are intend-
ed to provide the SEC staff with a bet-
ter understanding of registrants. These
types of examinations will consist of
high level reviews of an adviser's com-
pliance program and other essential
documents so that the examiners can
assess the representations made in the
adviser's disclosure documents.

Focused Reviews

Focused reviews will involve more
comprehensive, risk-based examina-
tions of areas identified by the exam
staff as posing higher risks for the ad-
viser's business and operations. The
five higher risk areas OCIE identified
are:

1. The Adviser’s Compliance Program

Rule 206(4)-7 under the Investment
Advisers Act of 1940, as amended (the
“Advisers Act”) requires registered in-
vestment advisers to adopt and imple-
ment written policies and procedures
that are reasonably designed to pre-
vent, detect, and promptly address any
violations of the Advisers Act by the
adviser and any of its “supervised per-
sons,” as defined in section 202(a)(25)
of the Advisers Act. Rule 206(4)-7 also
requires investment advisers to under-
take an annual review to determine the

adequacy and effectiveness of their
procedures in light of internal and ex-
ternal developments affecting the firm.

OCIE's examiners are expected to
evaluate the effectiveness of the ad-
viser's compliance program, including
reviewing whether canflicts of interest
and compliance-related risks are prop-
erly identified, mitigated, and disclosed.
Examiners will also review whether a
competent Chief Compliance Officer
("CCO”) has been empowered to ad-
minister the compliance program, as
the SEC has said is required by Rule
206(4)-7.

2. Filings and Disclosures

As fiduciaries, investment advisers
have duties of care and loyalty to their
clients, which require disclosure of all
material facts regarding conflicts of in-
terest. This obligation is intended to al-
low clients and potential clients to make
informed decisions before entering into
or continuing a relationship with an ad-
viser. OCIE has identified certain con-
flicts of interest that may be inherent in
investment advisory business models,
including:

* Compensation arrangements, par-
ticularly undisclosed compensation
arrangements and their effect on
recommendations;

+ The allocation of investment oppor-
tunities;

Continued on page 17
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* Controls and disclosure associated
with side-by-side management of
performance-based and purely as-
set-based fee accounts;

* Risk controls and disclosures; and

* Higher risk products or strategies
targeted to retail investors.

Examiners are also likely to review
an adviser's filings, marketing materials,
and other disclosure documents for the
content, accuracy, and completeness
of disclosures, particularly regarding
the full scope of the adviser’s business,
investment activities, and conflicts of
interest.

3. Marketing

OCIE identified marketing and per-
formance advertising as a 2014 exam
priority generally for investment advis-
ers, and specifically as part of the NBE
Initiative. During focused reviews, ex-
aminers are expected to evaluate the
accuracy and completeness of the ad-
viser’s claims about their business, in-
vestment objectives, and performance
record.

Among other things, OCIE will likely
review and test hypothetical and back-
tested performance, the use and dis-
closure of composite performance fig-
ures, and performance record keeping.
Examiners are also likely to review the
adviser's compliance oversight of its
marketing activities and, if applicable,
marketing efforts related to securities
offered and sold pursuant to exemp-
tions afforded by the Jumpstart Our
Business Startups (JOBS) Act.

4. Portfolio Management

OCIE has noted that examiners will
review and evaluate the portfolio deci-
sion-making practices of the adviser,
including the allocation of investment
opportunities and whether the adviser’s
practices are consistent with its disclo-
sures to clients.

5. Safety of Client Assets

During focused reviews, OCIE is
expected to utilize a risk-based as-
set verification process to caonfirm the
existence of assets, and test for the
adviser's compliance with the Custody
Rule, Rule 206{4)-2 under the Advisers
Act, and other provisions designed to
preventthe loss or theft of client assets.
OCIE's March 2013 Risk Alert, available
at  hitp; w.sec.qov/about/office
ocie/custody-risk-alert.pdf, discusses
some of the most common Custody Rule
violations that examiners have identi-
fied.

Using the Risk Assessment
Program toe Prepare for Exams

As noted above, Rule 206(4)-7(b) re-
quires an adviser to undertake a review
of the adequacy and effectiveness of
its compliance program at least annu-
ally, or more often if appropriate due to
internal and external developments. An
adviser’s risk assessment program can
provide a useful tool for preparing for
risk assessment and focused reviews.

Step One: Establish the Review
Protacol

1. Identify Responsible Personnel

The size and complexity of an in-
vestment adviser and its business will
inform who should conduct the review.
Smaller firms may well determine that
it is appropriate for the compliance
department, under the direction of the
CCO, to conduct the review. Larger
advisers may find it beneficial to es-
tablish a standing risk committee that
is responsible for directing the perfor-
mance of the annual review and for
meeting periodically to consider and
address business, compliance, opera-
tional, financial, and reputational risks.
If the adviser has never-before been
examined, significant compliance is-
sues have been identified, or significant
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changes in the adviser’s organization or
activities have occurred, it may be ap-
propriate for the adviser to have the re-
view conducted under the direction of
outside counsel.

2. Gather Relevant Documents

To prepare for the review, the re-
sponsible personnel will want to com-
pile a file of relevant information, such
as:

« The current Form ADV, brochure,
and polices and procedures, in-
cluding its Code of Ethics;

+ The last annual review, including
any planned remediation;

= Communications with the SEC;

+ Employee or client complaints;

« Internal reports or documentation
relating to a compliance event and
its resolution;

» Relevant supervisory or compliance
logs, deficiency reports, or similar
other documentation;

* Management reports;

» A checklist of relevant legal or
requlatory developments that are
required to be reflected in the ad-
viser's policies and procedures;

» Copies of current disclosures and
marketing materials; and

« Negative news articles or publicity.

3. Determine Who Should Be Inter-
viewed

A list of personnel to be interviewed
should be developed. The list should not
be limited to compliance professionals,
but should include relevant business,
operations, technology, and financial
personnel who are knowledgeable
about changes in the adviser's
activities as well as events that should
be factored into the review. Business
personnel should include portfolio
managers, invesiment  committee
members, trading personnel, and
research analysts.

Continued on page 18
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Identifying Risks and Conducting
the Review

Advisers should use the annual
review to test the effectiveness of its
compliance policies and procedures
since the last review, consider inter-
nal and external developments over
the past year, evaluate the compliance
risks that they pose for the adviser, and
confirm the implementation of appropri-
ate controls for managing and mitigat-
ing these risks. See, e.g., the SEC staff's
"Risk Inventory Guide,” available at
http://www.sec.gov/info/cco/red flag
leqend 2007.pdf, which identifies 12 of
the risks that investment advisers typi-
cally experience as part of their day-to-
day operations. New developments that
advisers will want to consider are:
Personnel

1. Organizational  and

Changes

An investment adviser should regu-
larly confirm that it has addressed or-
ganizational and personnel changes,
if needed. Among other things, an ad-
viser will want to review its Form ADV,
organizational chart, and policies and
procedures to ensure that new owner-
ship or affiliate relationships and key
personnel changes are reflected, and
that any gaps in management or super-
vision resulting from new business lines
or employee departures are addressed.
Disclosures should be reviewed and re-
vised as necessary to reflect any addi-
tional conflicts of interest as a result of
organizational and personnel changes.

2. Changes in Business Activities or
Clients

The review should consider whether
the adviser needs to update its disclo-
sures, policies, or internal controls to
address conflicts of interest, or compli-
ance and other risks arising from chang-
es in its activities—or its affiliates’
activities—or changes in its clients or

their circumstances. Care should be
taken to be sure that any new strategies
or activities are consistent with stated
objectives or restrictions, and any in-
consistencies should be reconciled
promptly. New developments that may
need to be reflected include new lines
of business and products, new compen-
sation practices, changes in executing
brokers, new soft dollar practices, new
types of clients, and changes in client
and counterparty ownership or credit
risks.

3. Operational and Financial Issues

The adequacy of the adviser's op-
erational systems, infrastructure, and
financial controls should be reviewed
and tested at least annually to make
sure that they remain effective and
keep pace with overall developments.
Among other things, the adviser may
wish to:

« Test information security and pri-
vacy controls;

* Review whether any restructuring
of the trading floor or office moves
creates actual or apparent risks of
insider trading or misappropriation
of client information; and

» Test the performance of execution
and order management systems,
information systems, and trade al-
location systems.

4. Regulatory Developments

The adviser's review should take
into account legal and regulatory de-
velopments applicable to the advisers
business, confirm that its policies and
procedures have been updated to re-
flect those developments, and verify
that appropriate training was provided
to relevant personnel. In addition to
new rules, the assessment should take
into account relevant SEC enforcement
cases and private litigation as well as
informal SEC guidance, such as staff in-
terpretations, statements about exami-
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nation priorities, and commissioners’
speeches.

5. Compliance Issues

The risk assessment review should
confirm that any compliance issues
identified since the last review were
addressed, and that all regulatory dead-
lines were met. Supervisory logs should
be checked to determine the resolution
of any identified red flags.

Post Beview Follow-Up

Following completion of the risk as-
sessment review, advisers will need to
consider:

1. Documentation

Advisers Act Rule 204-2 requires a
registered investment adviser to make
and keep records documenting its an-
nual review of policies and procedures
conducted pursuant to Rule 206{4}-7(b).
Although the adviser will want to cre-
ate a record of its review and document
the remediation of any identified com-
pliance issues, careful consideration
should be given to the detail included
in the written report because the SEC
staff and potentially some clients will
request a copy of the report. Accord-
ingly, careful consideration should be
given to whether the report should be
prepared under the direction of legal
counsel, and the final report should be
distributed internally only to responsible
persons with a need to know. An exit
interview can provide a useful forum
for discussing any complicated issues
identified in the review,

2. Disclosures and Consents

The adviser will want to update any
disclosures that are found to be inaccu-
rate or incomplete, including the advis-
er's Form ADV, marketing materials, and

Continued on page 20
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disclosures of conflicts of interest, fees,
or soft dollar practices. Consideration
should be given if any client consents
are required to be obtained.

3. Policies and Procedures

The adviser's compliance policies
and procedures should be updated if
they are determined to be outdated,
incomplete, inaccurate, or insufficient,
Prior to discarding any outdated poli-
cies and procedures, registered advis-
ers should consider that Advisers Act
Rule 204-2 requires advisers to make
and keep copies of all policies and pro-
cedures that are in effect or were in
effect at any time during the last five
years.

4. Training

As part of the advisers regular
compliance protocol, personnel should
routinely receive training in the event
of material changes in business, pro-
cedures, or operations. If the adviser’s
procedures are updated as a result of
review findings, or if compliance issues
are discovered, compliance training
should be provided to relevant person-
nel.

5. Mitigation and Self-Reporting

If any deficiencies are uncovered
during the review, responsibility for re-
mediation should be assigned, and re-
medial action should promptly be taken

and documented. If the deficiency is
material, the adviser, in consultation
with counsel, should determine wheth-
erto self-report the issue to the SEC.

*K. Susan Grafton is a partner in
the Washington, DC and New York of-
fices of K&L Gates LLP. Ms. Grafton may
be reached at (202) 778-9498 or susan.
grafton@klgates.com. This article is in-
tended to provide
general informa-
tion on the mat-
ters  discussed
herein. It should
not be relied upon
for legal advice
on any matter. ®

K. Susan Grafton,
Partner, K&L Gates
LLP
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‘Regulatofy :

SEC's Stein Examines U.S.
Securities Markets, Their
Challenges and Regulators

On February 5, SEC Commissioner
Kara Stein addressed in a speech the
tremendous challenges faced by the
SEC and nther regulatnrs in regulat-
ing increasingly
complex securities
markets and mak-
ing them more ef-
ficient. She posed
numerous difficult
questions, includ-

Kara Stein, SEC ;
Commissoner ng:

* " What: steps
can be taken to ensure that markets
can withstand computer-driven
glitches?

* How canthe markets be made more
fair including in analyzing trade ex-
ecution?

* Do high frequency traders supply
important liquidity to the markets;
how do they affect volatility?

« While the exchanges are highly
scrutinized at considerable cost, do
dark poals (that also bring together
buyers and sellers) shoulder their
fair share of regulatory burden and
expense?

In addressing these issues, Com-
missioner Stein suggested that the
SEC consider whether to initiate a
tick size pilot program that would aid
in learning what connection there is,
if any, between the tick size and the
research coverage or market making

of issuers. She also identified that a
reappraisal of the role of self-requla-
tory organizations (SROs) needs to be
undertaken, observing that “in a world
where trading occurs in hundreds of
places, which are for-profit enterpris-
es, the exchanged-based SRO model
warrants significant reconsideration.”
Finally, Commissioner Stein noted that
the SEC needs to “better understand
and clarify the role of the FINRA, which
has taken on more and more regula-
tory functions.” FINRA now runs many
critical market surveillance functions,
such as monitoring for insider trad-
ing and looking for cross-market ma-
nipulations. She noted that FINRA's
involvement in an increasingly com-
plex market creates new challenges,
“including how to effectively oversee
a very important, but private regula-
tor” and that the SEC needs to exam-
ine interactions among "FINRA and its
customers, other market participants,
the Commission, and regulators and
participants in related markets.”

See Remarks before Trader Forum
2014 Equity Trading Summit, Speech
by SEC Commissioner Kara M. Stein,
(Feb. 6, 2014), avaifable at hupf/
www.sec.gov/News/Speech/Detail/

Speech/1370540761194% UwJV-vid-
WVM.

SEC Staff Provides Guidance
on “Knowledgeable Employee”
Definition Under Rule 3c-5

On February 6, the SEC's Division of
Investment Management issued guid-
ance in the form of a no-action letter

defining “knowledgeable employee”
under Rule 3c-5 of the Investment Com-
pany Act in response to an inguiry by
the Managed Funds Association. Rule
3c-5 permits a “knowledgeable em-
ployee” to invest in a private fund with-
out counting towards the 100-person
limit under & 3{c){1) or being a “quali-
fied purchaser” under § 3(cH7). Thus,
the exemptive status of a private fund
could be jeopardized if its investment
manager misapplies the knowledge-
able employee definition.

Rule 3c-5 divides “knowledgeable
employee” into two categories for
purposes of exclusion from beneficial
ownership determinations: (1} senior
management and executives, and (2)
non-executive employees of the fund
actively participating in its investment
activities.

Executive Officers: Rule 3c-5(a)(4)(i)
defines the first category of knowledge-
able employees as any natural person
who is an “Executive Officer, director,
trustee, general partner, advisory board
member, or person serving in a similar
capacity” of a private fund. The defini-
tion of Executive Officer is further sub-
divided as: (1) an employee who is “the
president, any vice president in charge
of a principal business unit, division or
function (such as sales, administration
or finance),” or {2) “any other officer
who performs a policy-making func-
tion” for the investment manager, the
fund, or affiliated management person
of the private fund.

Continued on page 22
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*  Principal Business Unit: In the first
instance, the SEC stated that wheth-
er an individual is “in charge of a
principal business unit” depends on
the facts and circumstances of the
investment manager's business. A
business unit or function does not
need to be part of the fund’s invest-
ment activities to be considered
“principal,” and the size of the man-
ager or number of its business units
is not necessarily determinative. In
fact, the SEC acknowledged that
an investment manager using elec-
waonic trading models and heavily
relying on technology professionals
might consider its IT department a
“principal business unit.”

* Policy-Making Employees: Sec-
ondly, regarding whether an in-
dividual qualifies as an Executive
Officer by virtue of performing pol-
icy-making functions, the SEC said
a senior management title is not
necessarily required, and individu-
als may qualify as part of a group or
committee that steers policy.

Participating in Investment Activi-
ties: The second category of knowl-
edgeable employees includes em-
ployees regularly participating in the
investment activities of either the pri-
vate fund or of investment companies
managed by an affiliated management
persan of the fund. The SEC expanded
on its previous guidance that this cat-
egory of non-executive employees may
extend to certain research analysts,
traders, tax professionals, and attor-
neys.

Related Advisers: The SEC staff also
considers knowledgeable employees
of a "filing adviser” that files a single
Form ADV on behalf of itself and other
“relying advisers” as a single advisory
business to be knowledgeable employ-
ees of the private fund that is managed

REGULATORY: UPDATE

by the filing adviser or relying advisers,
provided they meet the other. condi-
tions of the rule.

The SEC also reminded investment
managers to maintain “in their hooks
and records a written record of
the employees” it considers to be
knowledgeable employees. The SEC
staff no-action letter with a link to the
incoming letter is available at httpy/
www.sec.qov/divisions/investment/
noaction/2014/managed-funds-
association-020614.htm# _ftnref1.

SEC Charges Advisory Firm and
its Principal for Misleading
Advertisements in Social Media

On January 30, the SEC announced
settlement of administrative proceed-
ings against an investment adviser and
its majority owner/president/CCO for
making false claims through Twitter,
newsletters, and other communications
about the success of their investment
advice and a mutual fund they manage.
In addition to outright misstatements
as to annual return of the mutual fund
and how it compared to other funds,
the adviser presented cherry-picked
past recommendations that selectively
highlighted successes while omitting
failures. The SEC alleged such activi-
ties violated the anti-fraud provisions
of the Advisers Act and the advertis-
ing rules. The principal agreed to pay a
penalty of $100,000, and he and the firm
agreed to be censured and comply with
certain undertakings including the re-
tention of an independent compliance
consultant for three years.

See SEC Charges N.Y-Based Mon-
ey Manager and Firm for Misleading
Advertisements, SEC. Rel. No. 2014-
18 (Jan, 30, 2014), available at http://
www.sec.gov/News/Pressh e
Detail/PressRelease/1370540701988%.
UugBjPldV1Y.

See also In Re Navigator Money
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Management, Inc. and Mark A. Grimal-
di, SEC Order, IA Rel. No. 3767 {Jan. 30,

2014), available at http:/jwww sec.qov/
litigation/admin/2014/33-9521.pdf.

SEC Obtains “Admission” to
Recordkeeping Violation

On January 29, a large broker-deal-
er admitted to violating “blue sheet”
information requirements by failing to
provide the SEC with complete and ac-
curate information about trades made
by the firm and its customers as part of
an SEC investigation into an instance
of unauthorized account intrusion.
The SEC’s decision to seek an “ad-
mission” of a recordkeeping violation,
especially when the broker claims the
problem resulted from a coding error,
illustrates the SEC's heightened in-
sistence on pushing for admissions.
In a September 26 speech, SEC Chair
White said admissions will be sought
when “the harm is extensive” and “the
conduct poses a significant risk.” The
admission in this case appears to in-
dicate that harm may not need to be
felt directly by investors, such as in a
fraud or insider trading case, but may
now be expected to include hindrance
of the SEC's ability to protect investors
through investigations.

SEC Enforcement Director Andrew
J. Ceresney expressedthe seriousness
of the violation, stating “Blue sheet in-
formation is the lifeblood of many SEC
investigations and
examinations...
when firms fail to
provide us with ac-
curate or complete
trade data, it risks
compromising our

Andrew J.

ability to detect
g"f’ﬁs"ey' Sfc and investigate se-
bl curities law viola-
Director 2 w
tions.
Continued on page 23
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In addition to a $2.5 million penalty,
the broker-dealer agreed to undertake
such remedial measures as retaining
an independent consultant to review
its supervisory, compliance, and other
policies and procedures designed to
detect and prevent securities laws
violations related to blue sheet sub-
missions.

See Scottrade Agrees to Pay
525 Million and Admits Providing
Flawed “Blue Sheet”™ Trading Data,
Sec. Rel. No. 2014-17 (Jan. 29, 2014),
available  at  http/fwww.sec.oov/
News/PressRelease/Detail/Press
Release/1370540696906# UvumafldV1a;
see also Deploying the Full Enforce-
ment Arsenal (Sept. 26, 2013), available
at http:/fwww.sec.gov/News/Speech/

Detail/Speech/1370539841202# . Uvuo-
PldV1Y.

DOL and SEC Announce $21
Million Settlement with
Investment Adviser for Disclosure
and Compliance Program Rule
Violations and Improper Cross
Trading

On January 27, the SEC announced
the settlement of two administrative
proceedings against a California-based
investment adviser with over $440 bil-
lion in assets under management for
violations related to cross trading and
failure to disclose client losses related
to a coding error. The 821 million settle-
ment also resolves related charges by
the U.S. Department of Labor (DOL) that
the investment adviser made prohibited
securities purchases resulting in losses
to 99 ERISA-covered accounts.

The first SEC order stated that a
coding error occurred when a port-
folio compliance officer changed a
classification of a private placement
investment in the adviser's automated

compliance system but did not recog-
nize that this caused the investment
to be coded internally as ERISA-eligi-
ble, even though the issuer’s offering
memorandum precluded investments
by ERISA plans. The adviser subse-
quently purchased $90 million worth of
the security for 99 ERISA clients. The
adviser’s staff discovered the security
was misallocated into ERISA accounts
in December of 2008, but did not
promptly disclose the error to clients.
Instead, it conducted a three-month
investigation into the matter, including
consultation with in-house and out-
side counsel, and concluded that the
error did not breach client guidelines
and was not a “trading error” within
the meaning of its policies and proce-
dures. The firm sold the pesition over
two years at substantial losses, and
did not make its clients aware of the
purchase of the restricted security un-
til August 2010, by which time the SEC
was investigating. The SEC charged
the adviser with violation of its fiducia-
ry duty under Section 206(2) by failing
to disclose to clients the misallocation
of the security. The SEC also charged
the firm with violating Advisers Act
Rule 206(4)-7 based on its failure to
implement policies and procedures
reasonably designed to ensure that
errors are promptly corrected and dis-
closed. The SEC censured the adviser
and ordered payment of disgorgement
($8,111,582), interest ($1,508,810), and
a civil penalty ($1 million).

In another order involving a sepa-
rate set of client accounts, the SEC
found the adviser aided and abetted
and caused violations of the Invest-
ment Company Act by arranging cross
trades involving registered investment
companies and ERISA plans. The SEC
alleged that during a liquidation of
mortgage backed securities in 2007,

LEGAL & REGULATORY UPDATE
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the adviser formed agreements with
dealers to enter into prearranged sale
and repurchase transactions which
benefitted the adviser's buying clients
at the expense of its selling clients.
The adviser executed the sales of the
securities at the highest current in-
dependent bid price available, while
executing the purchases at a markup
over the sales price, instead of at the
average between the highest bid and
lowest independent offer. This caused
the full benefits of the $12.4 million in
market transaction cost savings to be
allocated to the buying clients. The SEC
found that, because the adviser failed
to determine a “current market price”
for the assets pursuant to Rule 17a-7, it
violated Sections 17(a)(1) and 17(a)(2)
of the Investment Company Act as well
as Section 408 of ERISA. The SEC also
charged the. adviser with violation of
its fiduciary duty under Section 206(2)
and the compliance program rule, Rule
206(4)-7. The adviser agreed to hire a
compliance consultant to review its
systems and controls to prevent im-
proper cross trading, and the SEC di-
rected payment of $7,440,881 to com-
pensate clients and satisfy the related
DOL proceeding, as well as a $1 million
civil penalty to the SEC and a $607,717
penalty to the DOL.

The press release and two SEC
orders are available at: httoJ/fwww.
sec.gov/News/PressRelease/Detail/
PressRelease/1370540675955# . Uupi
RvldWVM.

If you have questions or comments
about matters in the Legal & Regulatory
Update column, contact the 1AA legal
team. B
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9 FinCEN Extends FBAR Filing Deadline to June 30, 2015

On December 17, the U.S Treasury's
Financial Crimes Enforcement Network
(FinCEN) extended the deadline to
June 30, 2015 for certain individuals
required to file Form TD F 90-22.1,
also known as the Report of Foreign
Bank and Financial Accounts (FBAR).
FinCEN took this action in light of its
ongoing consideration of questions on
the application of the filing requirement
to individuals with signature authority
over (but no financial interestin) certain
types of accounts.

FinCEN is further extending the filing
due date from June 30, 2014 to June 30,

2015 for individuals whose filing due
date for reporting signature authority
was previously extended by Notice
2012-2, which include (i) employees and
officers of certain financial institutions
who have signature authority over (but
no financial interest in) one or more
foreign financial accounts; and (ii)
certain employees or officers of SEC-
registered investment advisers that
have signatory or other authority over
(but no financial interest in) foreign
financial accounts of persons that are
not registered investment companies.
The extension applies to the

reporting of signature authority held
during calendar year 2013 as well
as all reporting deadlines previously
extended by earlier notices. For all
other individuals with an FBAR filing
obligation, the filing due date remains
unchanged. See FinCEN Notice 2013-1
FBAR Filing Requirement—Extended
Filing Date Related to Notice 2012-
2, Dec. 17, 2013, available at http://
www.fincen.gov/forms/files/FBAR%20
Notice%20re%20Extended%20

Filina%20Date %20(532-2013) editSig.
pdf. &

@ ESMA Seeks European Commission Clarification of Derivatives Definition

On February 14, the European
Securities and Markets  Authority
(ESMA) sent a letter to the European
Commission highlighting a problem
on an absence of a single, commonly

adopted definition of “derivative” or
“derivative contract” under European
Union law. The absence of a uniform
definition may prevent consistent
application of the European Market

Infrastructure Regulation (EMIR) that
cross-refers to the list of financial
instruments mentioned in the Markets

Continued on page25
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in Financial Instruments Directive
(MiFID), across member-countries.
One of the primary discrepancies
is that the United Kingdom does not
consider foreign exchange (FX) trans-
actions with a settlement period up to
seven days, or entered into for com-
mercial purposes, to be derivatives
while other member countries take
the position that
FX  transactions
would need to be
reported if the set-
tlement period is
for more than two
days. Since EMIR imposes a reporting
obligation to trade repositories for all
derivatives, different classifications: of
what constitutes a derivative contract
may lead to the reporting of certain
transactions in one member country

On January 29, the European Com-
mission proposed rules to limit credit
institutions’ investments in hedge funds
and other alternative invastment funds
in its continuing effort to address the
status of certain banks that “remain
too-hig-to-fail, too-hig-to-save and too-
complex-to-resalve.” While the U.S.
has adopted its Volcker Rule, interna-
tional organizations continue the de-
bate on business structures and busi-
ness models.

As proposed, certain EU banks
would be prohibited from proprietary
trading or investing in or holding shares
in “alternative investment funds”

The next International Committee
meeting will be held by conference call
on March 27. In addition to Committee
discussion, the meeting will include
a presentation by Prema K.R. Thiele,

and not in others.

Clearing obligations for OTC deriva-
tives face a similar problem because
the calculation of the clearing thresh-
old by non-financial counterparties is
made on the basis of positions on OTC
derivatives. ESMA now requests the
Commission to clarify the definitions
contained in MiFID to help ensure the
uniform application of
EMIR. The particular
points in need of clari-
fication include (1) the
definition of current de-
rivatives in relation to
the frontier between spot and forward
and their conclusion for commercial
purposes, and (2) the definition of com-
modity forwards that can be physically
settled.

ESMA also conveyed to the Euro-

(AIFs), such as hedge funds, or entities
that sponsor AlFs. These restrictions
would not apply to closed-ended and
unleveraged AlFs or qualifying ven-
ture capital funds established in the EU
and that adhere to certain marketing
requirements. The restrictions would

be subject to the discretion of national

competent authorities who can require
legal and economic separation of these
activities within the banking group if
certain metrics are exceeded, e.g., (1)
total assets of at least €30 billion, and
(2) have trading activities amounting to
at least €70 billion or 10% of its total as-
sets.

March 27 International Committee Meeting

a partner at Borden Ladner Gervais
LLP in Toronto, concerning recent
requlatory developments in Canada.
Please contact IAA Associate General
Kathy D. lIreland at kathyireland@
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INTERNATIONAL DEVEEOPMENTS

pean Commission that national securi-
ties regulators will not implement the
relevant EMIR provisions for contracts
that are not clearly identified as de-
rivatives contracts without appropri-
ate Commission clarification. ESMA
specifically identifies FX forwards with
a settlement date up to seven days, FX
forwards concluded for commercial
purposes, and physically settled com-
modity forwards as contracts subject

to the delay.

See Classification of financial
instruments as derivatives,
ESMA/2014/184- (Feb. 14, 2014},
available at http://www.esma.
europa.eu tem/files/2014-184

letter to_commissioner barnjer -
gclassification of financal
instruments.pdf. B

The European Commission Proposes Restrictions on Credit Institution
Investments in Hedge Funds and other “Alternative Investment Funds”™

The regulation would apply to EU
branches of credit institutions estab-
lished in third countries and foreign
subsidiaries of EU parents, but only if
not subject to an equivalent regulatory
requirement in their home jurisdiction.

See Proposal for a Regulation of the
European Parliament and 'of the Coun-
cil On Structural Measures Improving
the Resilience of EU Credit Institutions,
COM (2014} 43 (Jan. 29, 2014), available
at htto://ec.europa.eufinternal market/
bank/docs/structural-refarm/140129
proposal en.pdf. B

if you have any questions about the
International Committee. H
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Governance, Risk Management and Compliance Online 1:00 pm 00 pm (E
-Buoks and Recards Hequl € mentsff In ‘stmentAdwsers Onlir

5 Reqmremems Un!rne Hmpm- ,.Uapm (ET)
-~ April8 .Investment Company Hegulatnry Update Online 1:00 pm - 300pm {Eﬂ L R
- April 17 o Cnmphance Programs Rules: and Strategies for Managlng Your Annual Rewew Cn‘ i 1:00 pm = 3:00 pm (ET)
: Apnl 22 Broker-Dealer Risk Assessment and Testing Online 1:00.pm - 300pm (ET} m R :
129 Mandates Beyond the Advisers Act: Anti: Money Laundenng and Data Secunty
nh,ne 1: OUpm 300pm (ET} : :

: 'Crztmal Skills: How Comp lance Can Work Effacnvely with AII Departments ﬂf the Firm
. Onlineand at NRS Sprmg2014 Camphance Conference, Orfando, FL muoam noan IET}
Ma'yl;!-i ~ Professional Ethics: Ethical Decision-Making for Compliance Professionals =
: (approved for IACCP.CE Ethics credlt} Online and at NRS Spnng 2014 L’omphance Conference
. Orando, FL 1:30 pm - 3:30 pm (ET] ;
- May29 "_.'Enves:ment Adviser Regulatory Update Dm'.'ne 1:00 pm - 300pm {Ef)

June3  IACCP Examination Sludv Session (optional) Unlme 1:00 prm - 4:00 pm {ET)
June 10 - Investment Adviser Cumplrance Symposium: San Francisco it
. r Introduction to the Advisérs Act: Framework Registration, Exclusmns and Exemptmns_
Reporting Advisers; Private Fund Ad\nsers and More 8:30am - ?U.'J’Dam (PT) ol
= Books and Records Hequwements for Investment Advisers 70: 453m 1245pm {PT): =
* Insider Trading, Advisory Contracts and ADV Delivery Heqmrements for lnvestmentﬁdwsers
_ 2:00 pm - 4:00 pm (PT) '
: June 11 Investment Adviser Compliance Sympusmm San Francisco :
i i * Understanding Fiduciary Duties and the Sweep of the Anti-Fraud mesmns of the Adwsers Act
8:30 am - 10:30 am (PT)
* Selected Advisers Act Anti-Fraud Rules: Custody, Political Contnbunons Solrcltors and Proxy Votmg
Requirements 10:45 am - 12:45 pm (PT)
= Compliance Programs Rules and Strategies for Managing Your Annual Hevrew 2 ﬂﬂpm 4:00pm (PT}
~June 19 Safely Embracing the Power of Social Media Op/ine 1:00 pm - 30ﬂpm (ET) :
~June24 . ATailored Compliance Testing Program for Investmant ‘Advisers Online Iﬂapm 300pm (ET)
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the Beltway

Sen. Tester Stepping Down as
Senate Banking Subcommittee
Chairman

Sen. Jon Tester
(D-Mont.) will step
down as chair-
man of the Senate
Banking Subcom-
mittee on Securi-
ties, Insurance, and
Investment, the
subcommittee with
primary jurisdiction
over investment
adviser issues.

Tester became

Sen. John Testér
(D-Mont.)

chairman of the

Senate Indian

Affairs Commit-

Sen. Mark Warner tee on February

(D-Va.) 13, prompting the
change.

Tester has

been subcommit-

tee chairman since
February 2013, tak-
ing over for Sen.
Jack Reed (D-R.1.).
He is expected to
formally resign the
post in late Febru-
ary.

As the Newsletter goes to press, it
is uncertain who will succeed Tester
as chairman of the Securities Subcom-
mittee. Possible successors include
Senators Mark Warner (D-Va.) and Jeff
Merkley (D-Ore.).

QAR A\
Sen. Jeff Merkley
(D-0Ore.)

Bipartisan Tick Size Reform Bill
Adapted by House

A bill to widen tick sizes for small
companies was adopted by the House
on February 11 in a 412-4 vote.

The Small Cap Liquidity Reform
Act (H.R. 3448) would allow "emerging
growth companies” to increase their
stock tick size to increments of five or
10 cents, for prices at or greater than
$1.00. The legislation would implement
changes over a five-year pilot program.

Its backers have said the move
would facilitate capital raising for
small businesses, but banking industry
groups and the SEC's Investor Advisory
Committee have expressed skepticism
over the increase saying it will raise
costs for retail customers and only ben-
efit financial intermediaries.

The bill was introduced by Reps.
Sean Duffy (R-Wis.) and John Camey
(D-Del.). It passed the House Financial
Services committee unanimously in
November.

Its prognosis in the Senate is un-
clear as the Banking Committee, to
which the House-passed bill was re-
ferred, is focused on housing finance
reform.

House Members Ask for Volcker
CLO Guidance

Democrats on the House Financial
Services Committee have asked regu-
lators to issue guidance saying their
agencies won't prohibit certain collat-
eralized loan obligations under the Vol-

cker Rule bank proprietary trading ban.

Seventeen Democrats including 15
on the Financial Services Committee
and Ranking Member Maxine Waters
(D-Calif.) urged the agencies in a Feb-
ruary 12 letter to “find a solution that, to
the extent possible, avoids the need for
unduly disruptive, market-wide renego-
tiations of existing CLOs.”

The House Democrats suggest a
“narrowly-tailored interpretation” that
aligns with Congressional intent “while
also guarding against evasion™ of re-
strictions in the rule.

They sent the letter to the heads of
the Federal Reserve, FDIC, SEC, OCC,
and CFTC.

Federal Reserve Governor Daniel
Tarullo told lawmakers in early Febru-
ary that addressing industry concerns
around CLOs is “at the top of the list” of
an inter-agency Volcker Rule working
group that is coordinating implementa-
tion.

The lawmakers’ request for guid-
ance follows letters that groups includ-
ing the Securities Industry and Finan-
cial Markets Association have sent to
the agencies asking for specific guid-
ance on CLOs.

New Senate Finance Chair
Committed to Extending Tax
Breaks

The new head of the Senate Finance
Committee wants to renew more than
50 tax breaks that expired at the end

Conzinsed on back cover
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of 2013 as his first
goal in the post.

Sen. Ron Wyden
(D-Ore.) said on
Bloomberg  TV's
"Political Capital”
that the measures,
known as tax ex-
tenders, will be the
first in a “two-step
drill” toward more comprehensive tax
reform.

"My first choice would be to first
go to comprehensive tax reform, rather
than to have to proceed with the ex-
tenders,” he said.

“But the reality is, when the House
leadership last November, in effect,
declared that Obamacare was their pri-
mary isslie, that changed the timetable.
So | am not going to sacrifice important
matters like research and development
and innovation on the altar of perhaps
some inaction on comprehensive re-
form.”

The current iax code, he sald isa
“rotten, dysfunctional mess,” but re-
newing the tax extenders can be a
“bridge” on which both Democrats and
Republicans can agree.

Sen. Ron Wyden
(D-Ore.)

- 00001939
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Wyden did not give a specific time-
frame for renewing the tax breaks, but
indicated that he would like to tackle
the issue in the next few months.

More comprehensive reform, mean-
while, may take much longer.

"It would be ohviously a hig lift to
enact a comprehensive reform pack-
age this year, but we can make a lot of
headway,” he said on the TV program.

To reform the tax code, Wyden said
he would begin with groundwork that
was laid in the 1980s with former Presi-
dent Ronald Reagan and a number of
Democratic senators, That plan would
set a threshold for people to count
some of the money they made from
investments as ordinary income under
the tax code, instead of capital gains.

Wyden took over the Finance Cam-
mittee when former Sen. Max Baucus
(D-Mont.), the previous chairman, was
confirmed as the next U.S. ambassador
to China in early February.

Contact Neil Simon, 1AA Vice Presi-
dent for Government Relations, to share
your views or to obtain more informa-
tion about these and other government
relations matters. H
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[FOR DOMESTIC U.S. RECORDS]

DECLARATION OF GAIL C. BERNSTEIN CERTIFYING RECORDS
OF REGULARLY CONDUCTED BUSINESS ACTIVITY

1, the undersigned, Gail C. Bernstein, pursuant to 28 US:C. § 1746, declare that:
1. Iam employed by the Investment Adviser Association as General Counsel and by reason
of my position am authorized and qualified to make this declaration, baving supervised
the records production.

2. Ifurther certify that the documents submitted on October 31, 2017 and stamped IAA —
00000001-00003051 are true copies of records that were:

(a) made at or near the time of the occwurence of the matters set forth therein, by, or from

information transmitted by, a person with knowledge of {hose matiers;-
(b) kept in the course of regularly conducted business activity; and.
(¢) made by the regularly conducted business activity asa regular practice.

1 declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true and correct. Executed on
November 16, 2018.

SEC-IAA-E-0000001
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